
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 23, 2017 
 

North Liberty  
City Council  

Regular Session 
 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for May 23, 2017 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published May 19, 2017 •page 1 
 

Meetings & Events 

Tuesday, May 23 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

Monday, May 29 
Memorial Day – City Offices 
Closed 

Thursday, Jun 1 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation 
Commission  

Monday, Jun 5 at 6:00p.m. 
Communications Commission 

Tuesday, Jun 6 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission  

Tuesday, Jun 13 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

 

 

 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (05/09/17) 
 Claims 
 April Revenues 
 Liquor Licenses 

o Casey’s General Store (Zeller Street) 
o Sushiya LLC 

 Pay Application #7, Phase 1 Water System Improvements, 
Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Portzen Construction  
$364,555.99 

 Change Order #4, Phase 1 Water System Improvements, 
Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Portzen Construction  
($61,625.00) 

 Change Order #9, North Liberty Road, Streb Construction Inc., 
$34,500 

 Pay Application #11, North Liberty Road, Streb Construction  
Inc., $37,607.05  

 FY 18 ICAD Allocation, $75,000 

Creekside South Final Plat and Site Plan 
The infrastructure improvements within the subdivision by Hodge 
Construction have been completed and accepted by City staff, and the 
final plat is ready for approval so it can be recorded.  Also, the site plan 
was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at their 
May 2 meeting, and was being held until final plat approval, so it can 
now be considered. The plat and site plan are located near the 
northwest corner of Forevergreen Road and S. Front Street, and the 
zoning is RM-21, multi-family. The site plan covers roughly half of a 
larger final plat area that extends east to Front Street, all zoned RM-21. 
The plan proposes 88 units on 4.71 acres, a density of 2,331 square feet 
of land per acre, well below the maximum density allowed in the RM-21 
district of 2,000 square feet per units.  The subdivision is well thought-
out and the architectural design of the proposed buildings is unique and 
attractive.  It should be noted that residents from the Creekside 
subdivision to the north attended the Commission meeting earlier this 



published May 19, 2017 •page 2 
 

month to express concerns with the new subdivision.  A video of that meeting can be found at the 
following link:  

https://vimeo.com/215759025    

Fire Chief Search 
Chief Schmooke and I are recommending approval of a proposal from Moulder and Associates, which 
also includes services from Jeff Cayler, for the search for a full time Fire Chief.  The specifics of the 
proposed process are outlined in the Moulder/Cayler proposal, which are included in your packet.  In 
short, the process includes involvement by various people and groups, interviews and an assessment 
center, all of which will help evaluate each candidate.  The estimated cost for the search process is 
$16,000.  While the cost is substantial, this evaluation process will be very thorough and allow us to find a 
candidate that will be a good fit for our fire department, organization and community.  If approved, Mr. 
Moulder and his team will begin immediately. 

Police Station Project 
The agenda includes three action items related to the financing of the future police station.  The first two 
items are a public hearing and resolution amending the City’s urban renewal plan to include the 
construction of a new police station.  Once the plan amendment is approved, the City Council can 
consider a resolution setting a public hearing for the issuance of up to $5 million in GO bond funds 
specifically for this project.  If these aforementioned resolutions are approved by Council, the next action 
regarding financing will be scheduled for June 23rd.  Staff is recommending approval of both resolutions. 

Shive Hattery is currently developing a document that will more specifically outline what a $4 million 
project will provide versus a $5 million project.  This document will not be ready by Tuesday but should be 
available the week of the 29th.  The resolutions are written so that they are not committing the City to 
spending $5 million on this project; rather, these documents provide the option to spend up to $5 million.  
If it’s decided that a smaller building is more feasible or if costs on a larger building come in lower than 
expected, the City would only borrow what is needed, not to exceed $5 million.  This is a similar approach 
to how we fund other capital projects.   

And finally, at our last meeting a councilor suggested we seek Requests for Qualifications/Proposals 
(RFQ/P) for architectural firms for this project.  Staff is recommending against the RFQ/P process for this 
project and moving forward with Shive Hattery’s architectural team.  A memo is currently being drafted 
and will be delivered next week explaining the reasoning behind the recommendation.  That said, if the 
Council as a whole believes we should start a consultant selection process, a decision should be made 
soon as the process will take a considerable amount of time.  Moreover, if the Council would like to see 
the RFQ/P process used for other future projects we should discuss implementing such a policy.   

 

FY2017 Budget Amendment  
Each year, cities are required to amend their budgets in order to provide additional spending authority in 
cases where expenses are greater than budgeted.  Amendments are not required for revenues; however, 
we include revenues projections within the amendment.  Included in your packet is the budget 
amendment summary, which includes notes explaining the additional revenues and expenses projected 



published May 19, 2017 •page 3 
 

for FY 17. The substantial changes in this amendment revolve around capital projects and bond 
proceeds.  Despite the changes, fund balances and cash reserves will stay relatively unchanged and 
remain strong. 

Backflow Prevention Ordinance, 3rd and Final Reading 
Iowa Code requires cities with a population of 15,000 or more to implement a water backflow inspection 
program.  Currently, we have approximately 400 backflow preventers installed in homes and businesses 
throughout the City.  These units prevent water that has passed through the meter from being sucked 
back into the City’s water system.  Backflow preventers are not required on all accounts; rather, they are 
used in situations where there is a direct connection to an irrigation system, chemical tank or other 
potential for contamination.  The proposed ordinance will allow the building department more discretion 
when it comes to requiring backflow preventers as well as establish an inspection program.  The 
inspection itself will be completed by a third party (not the city) and staff is currently exploring an online, 
automated reporting process so that staff time is minimized in this process.  Building Official Tom Palmer 
will be at Tuesday’s meeting to answer questions.  Since the last Council meeting and as a result of the 
feedback from Council, staff has added new, clarifying language to this code section.  The added 
language is taken directly from the existing building code and is included in this section so the reader 
better understands the requirements specific to backflow prevention.     

Electrician/Plumber License Ordinance, 3rd and Final Reading 
At one time cities were responsible for issuing plumber and electrician licenses to complete work within 
the municipal jurisdiction.  Recently, the state of Iowa changed that rule and now licenses are being 
issued at the state level.  As a result of this change, Chapter 125 of the North Liberty Code entitled 
“Electrician and Plumber Licenses” is irrelevant and no longer needed.  Staff is recommending approval 
of the proposed ordinance which deletes chapter 125.         

Water and Sewer Rate Adjustment Ordinances 
As part of the FY 18 budget discussions earlier this year, water and sewer rates were discussed and at 
that time the financial model was projecting a 5% rate increase.  An updated model is included in your 
packet, which continues to show a 5% rate increase is needed in both the water and wastewater utilities. 
The driving force behind these proposed rate increases continues to be the cost of the needed capital 
projects for each utility: new drinking water treatment plant and an expansion to the existing wastewater 
treatment plant.  Staff is recommending approval of the ordinance amendments, which would take effect 
July 1, 2017. 

Fireworks Legislation 
Recently approved legislation legalizes the sale and use of fireworks in Iowa.  The legislation requires 
cities to provide for the sale of fireworks; however, allows for discretion by cities in terms of use within the 
corporate limits.  This legislation was executed by the Governor on Tuesday, May 9, essentially giving 
cities 21 days (15 business days) to make any necessary modifications to relevant ordinances.  On 
Tuesday, staff would like to discuss a sales moratorium with Council, which would allow staff time to 
prepare a zoning ordinance that would permit fireworks sales in certain zoning districts.  If amenable, a 
moratorium resolution would be brought forward for consideration at the June 13 meeting.   



published May 19, 2017 •page 4 
 

Regarding use within the corporate limits, staff is recommending against, which is consistent with our 
current code, mainly for reasons of safety and public disturbances/complaints.  Chiefs Venenga and 
Schmooke will be at the meeting to discuss their concerns.  That said, if the majority of the Council would 
like to see use within the corporate limits, staff needs direction as to what, if any, restrictions or other 
factors should be included in a draft ordinance.  

IDOT Cooperative Agreement – I380/Forevergreen Road Project 
Included in your packet is an agreement with the IDOT outlining the responsibilities and cost sharing for 
the local road projects associated with the I380/Forevergreen Road interchange project.  In summary, 
IDOT is responsible for design, letting and construction administration of the local road project and has 
agreed to pay a lump sum of $1 million of the estimated $6 million project.  The City is responsible for the 
remaining $5 million and will reimburse the IDOT, starting in FY 21, in five equal installments.  The plan is 
to start collecting revenues for repayment purposes in FY 19, so we can spread this interest free debt 
over 8 years.  Specifics as to the responsibilities of the IDOT and the City are outlined within the included 
agreement. 

Staff has been negotiating this agreement with the IDOT for a better part of a year and we feel that the 
proposal is fair for the City, will certainly be a benefit to our local transportation system and that the 
project will encourage new development in that part of the City.  Staff recommends approval of the 
proposed agreement. 



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: May 19, 2017; 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 

AGENDA 
North Liberty City Council 

May 23, 2017 
Regular Session 

6:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers 

 
1. Call to order   
 
2. Roll call 

 
3. Approval of the Agenda 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, May 9, 2017 
B. Claims 
C. April Revenues 
D. Liquor License Renewal, Casey’s General Store, 625 W. Zeller Street. Class C Beer Permit with 

Sunday sales endorsement includes ownership change 
E. Liquor License Renewal, Sushiya, Special Class C Liquor License with Outdoor Service 

endorsement 
F. Phase I Water System Improvements Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Pay Application #7, 

Portzen Construction, Inc., $364,555.99 
G. Phase I Water System Improvements Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Change Order #4, 

Portzen Construction, Inc., ($61,625.00) 
H. North Liberty Road/Dubuque Street Project, Pay Application #11, Streb Construction, 

$37,607.05 
I. North Liberty Road/Dubuque Street Project, Change Order #9, Streb Construction, $34,500.00 
J. ICAD FY 18 Allocation 

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. City Planner Report 

 
7. City Engineer Report 

 
8. City Attorney Report  



City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: May 19, 2017; 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 2 

 
9. Assistant City Administrator Report 

 
10. City Administrator Report  

 
11. Mayor Report  

 
12. Creekside South 

A. Commission and staff recommendations 
B. Applicant Presentation 
C. Resolution Number 2017-49, A Resolution approving the Final Plat and accepting 

improvements for Creekside South, North Liberty, Iowa  
D. Resolution Number 2017–50, A Resolution approving the Walkway 

Agreement between the City of North Liberty and Hodge Construction 
Company for Creekside South  

E. Resolution Number 2017-51,  A Resolution approving the Development Site Plan for Lot 1, 
Creekside South, North Liberty, Iowa   
 

13. Fire Chief Position 
A. Resolution Number 2017-53, A Resolution approving the Agreement between Moulder and 

Associates and the City of North Liberty, Iowa regarding the Fire Chief Position Executive 
Search 

 
14. Police Station Project 

A. Public Hearing on Proposed Amendment to the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area 
B. Resolution Number 2017-54, A Resolution to Approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment for 

the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area  
C. Resolution Number 2017-55, Resolution setting the date for a public hearing on proposal to 

enter into a General Obligation Urban Renewal Loan Agreement and to borrow money 
thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000 

15. FY 2017 Budget 
A. Public Hearing regarding proposed budget amendment 
B. Resolution Number 2017-56, A Resolution approving the City Budget Amendment and 

Certification – FY 17 – Amendment #1 
 

16. Backflow Prevention Ordinance 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2017-03, An Ordinance adding 

Chapter 90 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances to Address Backflow Prevention in the 
City’s Water Service System 

 
17. Electrician/Plumber Ordinance 

A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2017-04, An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 125, “Electrician and Plumber Licenses,” of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances  by 
repealing Chapter 125 

 
18. Water Rate Ordinance  

A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-06, An Ordinance amending Chapter 92.02, 
entitled “Rates for Service,” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty by adopting a new Section 
92.02 to increase the charges for water used  



City of North Liberty – 2017                   Updated: May 19, 2017; 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 3 

 
19. Sewer Rate 

A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-07, An Ordinance amending Chapter 99.02 
entitled, “Rate,” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty by adopting a new Section 99.02 to 
increase the charges for sanitary sewer services  

 
20. Fireworks Discussion 

 
21. IDOT Agreement – West Forevergreen Road Project  
22. Resolution Number 2017-52, A Resolution approving the Cooperative Agreement for Primary 

Road Project between the Iowa Department of Transportation and the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa regarding the West Forevergreen Road Project  (AGREEMENT NO. 2015-16-255) 

 
23. Old Business 
 
24. New Business 

 
25.  Adjournment 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 1 

Minutes 
North Liberty City Council 

May 9, 2017 
Work Session 

Regular Session 
 

Call to order   
Mayor Terry Donahue called the May 9, 2017 Work and Regular Sessions of the North Liberty City 
Council to order at 6:30 p.m.  Councilors present:  Chris Hoffman, Sarah Madsen, Annie Pollock, Jim 
Sayre and Brian Wayson.    
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Kevin Trom, Dean Wheatley, Megan 
Benischek, Tionna Pooler, Acie Earl, Vince Schrock, Glen Siders, Chief Diane Venenga, Brian Gotwals, 
Tom Palmer, Shelby Behrens and other interested parties. 

 
Swearing in of newly elected officials 
Mayor Terry Donahue and Councilor Sarah Madsen were sworn in.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes.  Agenda approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including City Council Minutes 
form the Regular Session on April 25, 2017; the attached list of Claims; Change Order Number 3 for 
the Phase I Water System Improvements Division 1 Water Treatment Plant to Portzen Construction 
in a deduct amount of $41,737.00; Pay Application Number 20R for the Phase II WWTP 
Improvements to Tricon Construction Group in the amount of $218,314.64; Change Order Number 
1 for the North Liberty Road Improvements to Metro Pavers, Inc. in the amount of $7,731.74; 
Change Order Number 2 for the North Liberty Road Improvements to Metro Pavers, Inc. in the 
amount of  $9,116.63; Pay Application Number 3 for the North Liberty Road Improvements to 
Metro Pavers, Inc. in the amount of $228,086.36; Pay Application Number 5 for the Phase I Water 
System Improvements, Division III – Well Construction and Rehabilitation to Gingerich Well & 
Pump Service in the amount of $174,781.00;  Pay Application Number 8 for the SRF Sponsored 
Water Quality Project to Metro Pavers, Inc. in the amount of $116,808.38; Change Order Number 2 
for the Penn Street Project to Streb Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of  $803.75; and the Liquor 
License Update, Café Muse, adding Outdoor Service endorsement.  The vote was all ayes. Consent 
agenda approved.  



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 2 

 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Planner Report 
City Planner Wheatley provided a fixed route service summary update.  The number of trips 
decreased from March to April with costs remaining about the same.  A joint meeting with the 
Planning Commission is requested to discuss approve site plans versus submitted construction 
plans with amendments.  Council discussed the report with Wheatley.  

 
City Engineer Report 
City Engineer Trom reported on the Water System Improvements Projects.  The contractor on the 
Water Plant project continues to pour walls, foundations, install underground plumbing and the 
base for the ground storage tank.  Staff is traveling to Mt. Pleasant tomorrow to look at precast 
walls before they are delivered.  The contractor on the Wells project has completed the Jordan well 
pump test. The results were a bit better than expected.  The contractor is waiting for the 
engineering to certify the well pump results before removing the sound barrier.  Construction of the 
well house has started.  The Raw Water Main project will start in the summer.  The North Liberty 
Road, Phase 2 project has slowed because of rain and poor soil conditions.  The Penn Street project 
gas main relocation is scheduled to be completed tomorrow. The street crossings will be made the 
week of May 22.  During heavy traffic times, two lanes will be open. After rush hour, there will be 
flaggers for somewhere between eight days and two weeks.  The contractor for the Brine/Water 
Maintenance Storage project is mobilizing soon.  The SRF Sponsored Water Quality Project is close 
to substantial completion. The Ranshaw House project design and bidding are underway.   Council 
discussed the report with Trom.  

 
City Attorney Report  
City Attorney Peterson presented information regarding the fireworks bill that was signed into law 
today.  Cities have the ability to opt out of allowing the use of fireworks, but cannot opt out of the 
sale. Heiar updated Council on staff’s opinion on the use of fireworks. Staff hopes to have 
information for discussion and a recommendation from staff for the next City Council meeting.  
Peterson talked about implementing a moratorium on sales so that an ordinance can be put into 
effect that is reasonable and consistent with state and local codes. Council discussed the fireworks 
issue. Peterson presented information on the final decision in the Weinman case. He reviewed the 
history of the case in detail for Council.  Council discussed the report with Peterson. 
 
Assistant City Administrator Report 
Assistant City Administrator Mulcahey reported that the North Liberty Summer Lunch and Fun 
Program begins June 5. Volunteers are still needed.  Defenders of Land and Water Day was last 
Friday. Approximately 300 North Central Junior High 7th graders were out in the field pulling garlic 
mustard, water testing, doing stream clean up and underbrush removal.  Mulcahey thanked the 
Streets Department, Parks Department, Recreation Department, and Stormwater Coordinator, Mike 
Wolfe for making the day a great success.  

 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported that a proposal from a search firm will be on the next City 
Council agenda.   In addition to a joint meeting with the Planning Commission, a joint meeting is 
needed with the Park Board to review and discuss the Aquatic Study.  

 
Mayor Report  



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 3 

Mayor Donahue reported that the CITY group is meeting next Monday.  He will forward a synopsis 
of the meeting.  

 
2017B Bond Sale 
Tionna Pooler, IPA, presented information regarding the bond sale.  
 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-48, A Resolution 
authorizing and approving a Loan Agreement, authorizing the call of outstanding bonds, providing 
for the sale and issuance of General Obligation Urban Renewal and Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B, 
and providing for the levy of taxes to pay the same to Wells Fargo. After discussion, the vote was: 
ayes – Wayson, Pollock, Madsen, Sayre, Hoffman; nays –none. Motion carried.  
 
United Methodist Church Site Plan  
Wheatley reported that Staff and the Commission recommended approval of the application as 
submitted. Council discussed the application with Wheatley.   
 
Glen Siders was present on behalf of the applicant.  The applicant has removed the request to delay 
the sidewalk installation. The Council discussed the application with Siders.   
 
Sayre moved, Pollock seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-47, A Resolution approving 
the Development Site Plan for the First United Methodist Church, North Liberty, Iowa.  The vote 
was: ayes – Sayre, Wayson, Madsen, Pollock, Hoffman; nays – none. Motion carried.    
 
Venom Villas Rezoning 
Mayor Donahue opened the public hearing regarding proposed rezoning at 7:19 p.m.  Shelby 
Behrens, 1270 Doe Run Drive, spoke regarding the adequacy of the amended lot sizes created with 
the rezoning request.  The public hearing was closed.  
 
Wheatley reported that Staff and the Commission recommended denial of the application. Council 
discussed the application with Wheatley.   
 
Acie Earl, the applicant, presented information regarding the application. Vince Schrock, MMS 
Consultants, presented additional information on the application.  Council discussed the application 
with the applicant. 
 
Donahue presented the findings in the staff report. Hoffman moved, Sayre seconded to deny the 
first consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-05, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on property owned by Venom 
Investments, LLC located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the RM-
8 Multi Family Residential Zoning District. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Hoffman, Madsen, 
Sayre, Wayson, Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.   Pollock moved, Hoffman seconded to adopt 
the findings in the staff report.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes Sayre, Pollock, Hoffman, 
Madsen; nays – Wayson. Motion carried.  
 
Athletic Field Lighting Ordinance 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2017-01, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 169, “Zoning Code – Development Regulations” 
of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by Updating Section 169.12(1)(I) for Certain Outdoor 
Sports Field Lighting.  The vote was: ayes – Madsen, Pollock, Sayre, Hoffman, Wayson; nays – none. 
Motion carried.  



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 4 

 
Sign Ordinance 
Madsen moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2017-02, An Ordinance Amending Chapter 173, “Zoning Code – Sign Regulations” of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances by Updating Section 173.08 Adding a Height Limitation for 
Ground Signs. The vote was: ayes – Wayson, Madsen, Sayre, Hoffman, Pollock; nays – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
Backflow Prevention Ordinance 
Sayre moved, Pollock seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-
03, An Ordinance adding Chapter 90 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances to Address Backflow 
Prevention in the City’s Water Service System. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sayre, Madsen, 
Wayson, Hoffman, Pollock; nays –none. Motion carried.  
 
Electrician/Plumber Ordinance 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 
2017-04, An Ordinance amending Chapter 125, “Electrician and Plumber Licenses,” of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances  by repealing Chapter 125.  The vote was: ayes – Pollock, Madsen, 
Hoffman, Wayson, Sayre; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
WoodRiver Energy 
Heiar presented information regarding the WoodRiver Energy agreement. Council discussed the 
agreement with staff.  
 
Pollock moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2017-46, A Resolution approving 
the Natural Gas Sales Agreement between WoodRiver Energy, LLC and the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa regarding the City’s natural gas purchases for certain facilities.  The vote was: ayes – Pollock, 
Sayre, Madsen, Hoffman, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Water Rate Ordinance  
Heiar presented information regarding the proposed water rate amendment. 
 
Mayor Donahue opened the public hearing regarding proposed water rate at 8:01 p.m.  No oral or 
written comments were received. The public hearing was closed.  
 
Hoffman moved, Wayson seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-
06, An Ordinance amending Chapter 92.02, entitled “Rates for Service,” of the Municipal Code of 
North Liberty by adopting a new Section 92.02 to increase the charges for water used.  After 
discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sayre, Hoffman, Wayson, Madsen, Pollock; nays – none. Motion 
carried.   
 
Sewer Rate 
Heiar presented information on the proposed sewer rate amendment.  
 
Mayor Donahue opened the public hearing regarding proposed sewer rate at 8:03 p.m.  No oral or 
written comments were received. The public hearing was closed.  

 
Wayson moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2017-
07, An Ordinance amending Chapter 99.02 entitled, “Rate,” of the Municipal Code of North Liberty 



City of North Liberty – 2017                    
Page: 5 

by adopting new Section 99.02 to increase the charges for sanitary sewer services.  The vote was: 
ayes- Madsen, Wayson, Sayre, Hoffman, Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Work Session – Civic Campus 
Heiar presented information regarding the Civic Campus project.  Chief Diane Venenga and Brian 
Gotwals, Shive Hattery were also present.  Council discussed the project.   
 
Old Business 
No old business was presented  
 
New Business 
Wheatley reported on a recent phone conference with IDOT regarding I380 improvements and 
alternatives. Councilor Wayson reported on City Clean up Day.  He also reported that it is National 
Nurses Week and National Hospital Week.  Of the 100 Great Nurses in Iowa, 20 are Johnson County 
residents, 5 are North Liberty residents.  Pollock reported that one is on North Liberty City Council, 
Councilor Wayson. 
 
Councilor Hoffman was contacted by the University of Iowa by an engage social innovation student. 
He will be working with the group on a North Liberty project.  
 
Mayor Donahue reported that Councilor Hoffman will be maintained as Mayor Pro Tem.  He 
requested that Council submit a list of outside committees they are members of and whether they 
would like to maintain those positions.  
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Donahue adjourned the meeting at 8:32 p.m. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:    ______________________________________ 
 Terry L. Donahue, Mayor 

 
       Attest: 
 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 

 



 
                          APRIL 30TH, 2017
 
                                         MONTH-TO-DATE   YEAR-TO-DATE
                                            BALANCE         BALANCE
________________________________________________________________________
  010-GENERAL FUND                       3,154,245.86    9,381,301.96
  011-FIRE EQUIPMENT CAPITA                      0.00        1,500.00
  012-LIBRARY CAPITAL FUND                     136.50       13,258.58
  013-RECREATION CAPITAL FU                      0.00        1,274.00
  014-POLICE CAPITAL FUND                    5,520.00       40,624.47
  015-TRANSPORTATION IMPACT                  9,493.29      787,045.09
  016-STORMWATER IMPACT FEE                      0.00            0.00
  017-TREE PROGRAM                           1,000.00        1,000.00
  018-PARK CAPITAL FUND                      2,000.00    1,606,321.03
  019-YOUTH SPORTS SCHOLARS                    923.92       14,871.63
  020-EQUIPMENT REVOLVING                      175.49        2,613.42
  021-TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQ                      0.00            0.00
  022-LIBRARY TAG                                0.00            0.00
  023-LIBRARY ENDOWMENT                          0.00            0.00
  024-DRUG TASK FORCE                          552.48        4,849.56
  025-POLICE SEIZED FUNDS                        0.00            0.00
  060-ROAD USE TAX FUND                    128,170.75    1,612,014.19
  061-STREET CAPITAL PROJEC              1,111,346.05    1,369,461.05
  062-IJOBS STREETS                              0.00            0.00
  090-TIF FUND                           1,741,384.71    4,211,366.61
  110-DEBT SERVICE FUND                  2,963,697.56    3,553,911.76
  210-TRUST AND AGENCY                     596,532.16    1,381,789.83
  280-CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                      8,860.00      130,810.00
  310-COMMUNITY CENTER II C                      0.00            0.00
  311-FRONT STREET RECONSTR                      0.00            0.00
  312-CHERRY STREET RECONST                      0.00            0.00
  313-TIF PROJECTS                               0.00            0.00
  314-ENTRYWAY DEVELOPMENT                       0.00            0.00
  315-HIGHWAY 965 IMPROVEME                      0.00      298,799.87
  316-COMMUNITY CENTER PHAS                      0.00            0.00
  317-TRAIL PROJECTS                             0.00            0.00
  318-EC DEVELOPMENT PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  319-PENN STREET IMPROVEME                      0.00      103,800.13
  320-LIBERTY CENTER PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  321-LAND/FACILITIES                            0.00            0.00
  322-LIBRARY BUILDING FUND                     10.46        8,304.92
  323-LIBERTY CENTRE BLUES/                      0.00            0.00
  324-RANSHAW HOUSE PROJECT                      0.00            0.00
  510-WATER FUND                           269,592.02    2,746,146.19
  511-WATER CAPITAL RESERVE                      0.00       82,496.00
  512-WATER SINKING FUND                 1,281,567.73    1,975,081.45
  513-WATER BOND RESERVE                         0.00            0.00
  514-WATER CAPITAL PROJECT                      0.00    2,536,415.67
  520-SEWER FUND                           340,163.96    3,393,194.80
  521-SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE                 17,125.00      348,214.00
  522-SEWER SINKING FUND                   113,135.33    1,131,353.30
  523-WASTEWATER TREATMENT                       0.00    3,970,433.76
  524-SEWER TRUNK AND I&I                1,576,748.21    3,017,135.61
  525-SEWER DEBT SERVICE RE                      0.00            0.00
  530-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT                 16,692.00      415,819.36
  532-STORMWATER SINKING FU                      0.00            0.00
________________________________________________________________________

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE                     13,339,073.48   44,141,208.24



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: Casey's Marketing Company

Name of Business (DBA): Casey's General Store #2479

Address of Premises: 625 W Zeller St

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 626-3108

Mailing PO Box 3001

City Ankeny Zip: 500218045

)

Contact Person

Name JESSICA FISHER, Store Operations

Phone: (515) 446-6404 Email JESSICA.FISHER@caseys.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Publicly Traded Corporation

Corporate ID Number: 184278 Federal Employer ID 42-1435913

Effective Date: 06/19/2017

Expiration Date: 06/18/2018

Classification Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Sunday Sales

Michael Richardson

First Name: Michael Last Name: Richardson

City: Pleasant Hill State: Iowa Zip: 50327

Position: President

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

42-0935283 Casey's General 
Stores IncFirst Name: 42-0935283 Last Name: Casey's General Stores, Inc.

City: Ankeny State: Iowa Zip: 50021-804

Position: Owner

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: No

Robert C Ford

First Name: Robert C Last Name: Ford

City: Dallas Center State: Iowa Zip: 50063

Position: Vice President

 BC0027728 



Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration 

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: First Western Insurance

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

Julia L Jackowski

First Name: Julia L Last Name: Jackowski

City: Urbandale State: Iowa Zip: 50322

Position: Assistant Secretary

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

James Pistillo

First Name: James Last Name: Pistillo

City: Urbandale State: Iowa Zip: 50323

Position: Treasurer

% of Ownership: 0.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes





City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

   
Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

  

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Bryan Hardin   5/1/17

Casey's General Store #2479

625 W. Zeller Street



City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

   
Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

  

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Casey's General Store #2479

625 W. Zeller Street

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom 
Palmer
Date: 2017.05.02 
06:40:49 -05'00'



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 5/1/2017 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 10:56 Time Out: 10:56
Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Casey's General Store (Zeller)
Address: 625 W Zeller ST Building #613201001

North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.0

Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring
Electrical Equipment - 3 Feet Clearance in Front of Panel

Status: FAIL
Notes:

605.3 Working space and clearance. A working space of not less than 30 inches in width, 36 inches in depth and 78 inches in height shall be provided in front 
of electrical service equipment. Where the electrical service equipment is wider than 30 inches, the working space shall be not less than the width of the 
equipment. Storage of materials shall not be located within the designated working space.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 3Printed on 5/1/17 at 09:23:54



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

5/1/2017 10:52:00 AM 5/1/2017 10:56:00 AMAdministrative
Notes:

Total Additional Time: 4 minutes

Total Time: 4 minutes
Inspection Time: 0 minutes

Kitchen Hood System
Cooking Equipment with Casters in Approved Floor Mounted Restraining Device

Status: FAIL
Notes: Add to fryer and pizza oven.

Section 609.4 Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining 
device and flexible gas connector installed in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Interior Finish/Flame Spread
Suspended Ceiling Tiles/Panels in Place 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Kitchen, replace missing ceiling tile.

703.1 Maintenance. The required fire-resistance rating of fire-resistance-rated construction, including, but not limited to, walls, firestops, shaft enclosures, 
partitions, smoke barriers, floors, fire-resistive coatings and sprayed fire-resistant materials applied to structural members and fire-resistant joint systems, 
shall be maintained.  Such elements shall be visually inspected by the owner annually and properly repaired, restored or replaced where damaged, altered, 
breached or penetrated. All suspend ceiling panels/tiles shall be in place and in good condition.

Page 2 of 3Printed on 5/1/17 at 09:23:54



Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 05/01/2017 11:19

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Krystle burrows on 05/01/2017 11:20

Signature of: Krystle burrows on 05/01/2017 11:21

Signature of: Krystle burrows on 05/01/2017 11:21

Signature of: Krystle burrows on 05/01/2017 11:21

Page 3 of 3Printed on 5/1/17 at 09:23:54



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

May 9, 2017 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Casey’s General Store #2479 
    625 W. Zeller St. 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owners:  Michael Richardson  (DOB: 1956)  
    Robert C. Ford    (DOB: 1957) 
    Julia L. Jackowski  (DOB: 1966) 
    James Pistillo    (DOB: 1971)                  
 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owners or calls for service related to their liquor license.   
 
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: Sushiya LLC

Name of Business (DBA): Sushiya

Address of Premises: 745 Community dr. ste A

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Iowa

Business (319) 626-6666

Mailing 1371 Burry Dr.

City Iowa City Zip: 52246

)

Contact Person

Name Li

Phone: (319) 594-0065 Email chiouhappy1127@gmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: 434107 Federal Employer ID 45-4955022

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 06/18/2017 Policy Expiration 06/18/2018

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Illinois Union Insurance Company

Effective Date: 06/18/2017

Expiration Date: 06/17/2018

Classification Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Outdoor Service

Special Class C Liquor License (BW) (Beer/Wine)

mingta chia

First Name: mingta Last Name: chia

City: Iowa City State: Iowa Zip: 52246

Position: member

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: No

 BW0094502 



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

April 13, 2017 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Sushiya 
    745 Community Dr. Unit A 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owners:  Mingta Chia  (DOB: 1970)  

   
 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owners or business related to their liquor license.   
 
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   







Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 5/3/2017 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 13:08 Time Out: 13:42
Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Sushiya
Address: 745 Community DR  Apt/Suite ##A

North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.0

Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring
Electrical Panels, Junction Boxes & Outlet Boxes - No Openings or Exposed Wiring

Status: FAIL
Notes: Exposed wiring on cord. Replace uni/cord with approved cord.

605.6 Unapproved conditions. Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for all switch and electrical 
outlet boxes.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 3Printed on 5/3/17 at 11:45:57



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

5/3/2017 1:03:00 PM 5/3/2017 1:09:00 PMTravel Time
Notes:

Total Additional Time: 6 minutes

Total Time: 40 minutes
Inspection Time: 34 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

No Extension Cords

Status: FAIL
Notes: Patio lights. Patio lights have to be plugged directly into an outlet, cannot use extension cord.
Some of the patio lights do not appear to be ul listed for outdoor use. Provide product spec sheets on lighting for review. 
Discontinue use until approved.

Office, remove green extension cord.

605.5 Extension cords. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be a substitute for permanent wiring. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be 
affixed to structures, extended through walls, ceilings or floors, or under doors or floor coverings, nor shall such cords be subject to environmental damage or 
physical impact. Extension cords shall be used only with portable appliances.

Kitchen Hood System
Cooking Equipment with Casters Have Approved Flexible Gas Conntector

Status: FAIL
Notes: Replace stationary gas hoses to rice cooker and grill with approved flexible gas hose/connector.

Section 609.4 Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining 
device and flexible gas connector installed in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Page 2 of 3Printed on 5/3/17 at 11:45:57



Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 05/03/2017 13:43

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Minotaur chia on 05/03/2017 13:44

Page 3 of 3Printed on 5/3/17 at 11:45:57



sjt
Typewritten Text
364,555.99

sjt
Snapshot

sjt
Typewritten Text
05/16/17











Page 1 of 2

CHANGE ORDER 

For Local Public Agency Projects

Non-Substantial:

Substantial:

No.: 9

Kind of Work: Roadway and Utilities

Accounting ID No. (5-digit number):N/A Project Number: 115125-0

Date Prepared: May 16, 2017Contractor:Streb Construction

Local Public Agency: City of North Liberty

Administering Office 

Concurrence Date

N/A

Form 831240  (12-15)

  

You are hereby authorized to make the following changes to the contract documents. 

  

 A - Description of change to be made:

Authorize incentive payment to Streb Construction for project completion in advance of the contract completion period.

  

B - Reason for change:

Streb Construction achieved Substantial Completion and Final Completion milestones in advance of the contract completion period. 

 

Substantial Completion achieved after 115 working days, with 134 working days allowed (19 working day incentive). 

 

Final Completion achieved after 16 working days, with 20 working days allowed (4 working day incentive). 

 

Total Incentive Achieved = 23 working days.

  

C - Settlement for cost(s) of change as follows with items addressed in Sections F and/or G:

23 working days at $1,500 / working day = $34,500 incentive payment

  

D - Justification for cost(s) (See I.M. 3.805, Attachment D, Chapter 2.36, for acceptable justification):

Per Article 3 (Contract Time) of the Agreement: 

 

1. The Owner shall pay as an incentive to the Contractor a sum of One Thousand Five Hundred ($1,500.00) per each working day 

the project is substantially complete and available for use prior to the substantial completion period. 

 

2. The Owner shall pay as an incentive to the Contractor a sum of One Thousand Five Hundred ($1,500.00) per each working day 

the project is substantially complete and available for use prior to the substantial completion period. 

 

3. The total amount (combined substantial and final completion) of incentive payments to the Contractor is $40,000 maximum.  The 

total incentive payment will be calculated and paid only after final completion is achieved.

E - Contract time adjustment:           No Working Days added            Working Days added:              Unknown at this time 

Justification for selection:

N/A





 

 
 

Creekside South 
Subdivision 

 





North Liberty – 2017 Resolution Number 2017-49 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-49 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT AND ACCEPTING 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR CREEKSIDE SOUTH,  NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
 

 
IOWA: 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

 
WHEREAS, the owner, H & O, L.C., has filed with the City Clerk a final plat for the 

property described in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof; 
 

WHEREAS, said real estate is owned by the above-named parties and the 
subdivision is being made with the free consent and in accordance with the desires of the 
owners; 

 
WHEREAS, said final plat is found to conform with Chapter 354 of the Code of Iowa 

and ordinances of the City of North Liberty; 
 
WHEREAS, the requirements for property improvements, except for sidewalks, have 

been installed in accordance with the design standards and Municipal Code requirements of 
the City of North Liberty. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the final plat of Creekside South, as shown 

on the final plat and that Property Improvements, except for sidewalks, are hereby approved 
and accepted. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017.  

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  ATTEST: 
 
 
 

TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 

 









North Liberty – 2017 Resolution Number 2017-50 
Page 1 
 

Resolution No. 2017-50 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WALKWAY AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY AND HODGE 
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR CREEKSIDE SOUTH 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, Hodge Construction Company has requested approval of a site 
plan for Creekside South, Lot 1;  

 
WHEREAS, the city has proposed terms and conditions relating to 

pedestrian walkways in Creekside South; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Walkway Agreement 

between the City of North Liberty and Hodge Construction Company is approved 
for the development of Creekside South North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: ATTEST: 
 
 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



April 26, 2017 

 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Site Plan Approval Request 
(Proposed Lot 1, Creekside South) 
 
Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in this 
memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 
Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This request from Hodge Construction to approve a site plan for multi-family property is located near 
the northwest corner of Forevergreen Road and S. Front Street. The zoning is RM-21, multi-family, and 
this site is roughly half of a larger overall property that extends east to Front Street, all zoned RM-21.  
 
This plan proposes 88 units on 4.71 acres, a density of 2,331 square feet of land per acre, well above the 
maximum density allowed in the RM-21 district of 2,000 units per acre. Here are the numbers: 

Units # Density 

Proposed 88 2,331 Sq Ft per unit 

Maximum allowed 102 2,000 Sq Ft per unit 

 
The configuration of the site is dictated to a large degree by fire access requirements to the many units 
and tall buildings. Access to all units is proposed to be from the internal drives, shown as 22 and 28 feet 
wide with low “roll” curbs to allow vehicles access to driveways/garages, and “standing” 6-inch curbs in 
other areas. There is a well-developed sidewalk plan, both within the site and connecting to the public 
sidewalks on Forevergreen and Front. 
 
While there seems to be a large amount of concrete on the plan, all units are designed with two-stall 
garages, which minimizes the number of extra surface parking spots required and will give the 
development a more residential look and feel.  
 
There are three different building styles proposed: 

 walkout style townhomes with rear-loading garages, along the Front Street and Forevergreen 
Road frontages; 

 slab-on-grade style townhomes with front-facing garages, along the north property boundary 
adjacent to existing duplex homes; and 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by Planning Commission at their meeting 5/2/2017



 multi-family style buildings with 27 units (3 residential floor plus parking under); and 36 units (4 
residential floors plus parking under). 

All building designs feature very attractive elevations with well-designed and generous windows, 
roofline changes, offsets, masonry beyond minimum requirements, and a variety of materials, and will 
be an asset in the area. 
 
The landscape plan is well developed and complete, and the developer paid attention to the public 
street frontages with landscaping, sidewalks, and attractive building fronts. Townhomes with two-stall 
garages give the development a very desirable scale look and feel, and provide a good mix of housing 
types on the site. The plan provides a transition from higher-density units within the site to the existing 
duplex units to the north of the site and to the town homes along the street frontages. The developer 
has paid attention to quality design and site features the City encourages in this plan. 
 
This is a quality plan for high-density residential development on existing zoned land, and staff 
recommends approval. 
 

 









































cloria
Text Box
North Liberty Development

cloria
Image

cloria
Image





























cloria
Snapshot















 

Project info 
City:   
Project name:  Hodge 
Document : Lumec  

Zenith is a traditional styled luminiare with elements of modern design. High tech optics give designers great 
flexibility and freedom. 

>   Created by : Jeff Kramer Date:  April 24, 2017 
 

Product Line : Z14-65W42LED4K-R-AC-RLE5-VOLT-SFZ4-APR4W-12-B104-3/4X20-8 1/2-DEC-
BKTX 
 
   
 
 P1 >1

 

 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-51 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2017-51 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN 
FOR LOT 1, CREEKSIDE SOUTH, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner, H & O, LC, and the developer, Hodge Construction Company, 
have filed with the City Clerk a development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 

Auditor’s Parcel No. 2016016, to the City of North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa, in 
accordance with the recorded Plat thereof, in the records of the Johnson County 
Recorder’s Office, containing 4.71 acres and subject to easements and restrictions of 
record;     

 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Zoning Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
does hereby approve the development site plan for Lot 1, Creekside South, North Liberty, 
Iowa. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Fire Chief Position 
 



North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 1 of 6 
 

     3702 S.W.32nd Street 
     Des Moines, IA 50321 

          515.371.1669 
 
 

www.moulderandassociates.com    WilliamMoulder@mchsi.com 
 

May 3 2017 
 

Ryan Heiar 
City Administrator 
PO Box 77 
North Liberty, IA. 52317 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FIRE CHIEF POSITION - EXECUTIVE SEARCH 

 
Mr. Heiar 
Thank you for the invitation to submit a proposed scope of services to assist the city 
to identify and recruit applicants for the position of Fire Chief for North Liberty.  I 
understand that this position is new, as it is a transition from part-time to a full-time 
appointment.  In our previous work with your community, we assisted in the search 
for the Police Chief.  We have successfully worked with Pleasant Hill and Spencer in 
the recent past to recruit Fire Chiefs.   
 
The objective of the search process is to find applicants that have the credentials 
necessary, and the personality and management style that will fit with the North 
Liberty organization.  The process starts with the creation of a Position Profile.  We 
conduct interviews of the Mayor and Council as well as the North Liberty management 
team, and personnel of the North Liberty Fire Department to develop an 
understanding of the traits needed for success in the position.  This information 
guides the selection process. 
 

PROCESS 
Knowledge Skills and Abilities 
We can assist with the development of the job description and position requirements, 
including education and experience preferred.   
 
Position Profile 
The information gathered in the interview process is used to create a description of the 
essential traits of the ideal candidate.  The traits are background, experience, 
education, management style, specific skills and abilities.  The interview results are 
summarized in writing, and submitted for review by the appointing authority, for further 
input and comments to MOULDER AND ASSOCIATES LLC.  Those comments will result in a 
final Position Profile that represents a consensus of the Council, city leadership and the 

MOULDER and ASSOCIATES LLC 

POLICE CONSULTANTS 

http://www.moulderandassociates.com/
mailto:WilliamMoulder@mchsi.com


North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 2 of 6 
 

department.  The participation of these representatives gives ownership of the resulting 
appointment, and increases the probability of success for the new chief. 
 
Application Process 
We develop and place the position announcements on various websites including 
websites associated with the Fire Service.  Emails are sent to various organizations in 
Iowa that will inform their members of the opportunity.   
 
As resumes are received, we compare the applicant’s information with the job 
requirements and position profile, to screen out candidates that are not viable.  We 
present the viable applicants with essay questions drawn from the values identified in 
the Position Profile.  Their responses provide the opportunity to assess the 
communication skills and management priorities of the applicant.   
 
Candidates that meet the position requirements and complete the essay portion are 
interviewed by telephone to clarify their professional experience and evaluate their 
communication skills.   
 
We rank applicants and make recommendations for candidates to continue in the 
process.  All applications are available for review by the city, along with our 
recommendations.  This includes the opportunity to discuss our suggestions and 
reasoning with appropriate city representatives.  The city will make the final 
determination of which applicants will continue in the process. 
 
Timeline 
The process generally takes 90 days from the posting of the opening to the selection of 
the candidate for the position.  The start date is often two to three weeks later. 
 

ASSESSMENT PHASE 
Candidates selected as finalists are invited to North Liberty to participate in this phase 
of the process.  The City determines the steps utilized in this portion of the process.   
 
 
Interview Process 
Interview groups are used to evaluate the candidates.  The interview groups will 
provide feedback of their impressions of the candidates to the appointing authority.  
This portion gives different perspectives of the candidates to assist in making a final 
decision.  
 
 
Assessment Center Process 
Retired Police Chief Jeff Cayler will administer the assessment center evaluation.  Chief 
Cayler has been conducting Assessment Center procedures for over 20 years.  Although 
most of the evaluations are performed for police chief selection and promotion, he 



North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 3 of 6 
 

assisted Marshalltown, Mason City, and Spencer in the selection of their Fire Chief.  We 
have worked together on several executive searches over the last decade. 
 
With the assessment center process candidates are evaluated by professional fire 
chiefs, recruited by Chief Cayler.  The evaluation is structured and uses a series of 
exercises to determine the candidate’s writing ability, working knowledge of legal 
issues, departmental operations, personnel management and fire service trends.  The 
exercises eliminate a candidate’s ability to hide behind a one-dimensional talent.  At the 
completion of the process, Chief Cayler and the assessors meet with the appointing 
authority to provide feedback.  The appointing authority will also receive a complete 
written report containing the assessors’ observations and scores from the process. 
 
An example of the Assessment Center Interview Process is attached to the Proposed 
Scope of Services as an exhibit.   
 

BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION 
Reference checks 
We will conduct preliminary personal reference and employment check, on the top 
candidates.  These are primarily telephone contacts with previous employers and 
references provided by the candidate.   
 
Background check 
We will conduct a thorough background check including criminal, credit, driving and 
personal background history of the top one or two candidates.  We conduct direct 
interviews of the immediate supervisors and coworkers of the candidate. 
 

EMPLOYMENT OFFER 
After a candidate is selected, we can provide assistance in the offer of employment, 
including the development and negotiation of the wage and benefit package. 
 

WEEKLY REPORTS 
The progress of the fire chief selection process generates frequent inquiries from the 
mayor, council members, fire department personnel and the public.  We will email 
progress reports each week to keep interested parties informed.   
 
 

FEES 
Fees are $150.00 per hour plus expenses associated with the selection processes.  The 
city administrator will be advised of expenses as they accumulate.  Advertising fees and 
out of state travel expenses will not exceed $2,000. 
 
The fees for services from MOULDER AND ASSOCIATES LLC is $14,000 plus expenses.  
If the city prefers to use only selected services the fees will be adjusted.  We look 



North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 4 of 6 
 

forward to discussing our services and we are available to meet with you and the 
council to address any questions. 
 
I will ask Chief Cayler to submit a proposal for the Assessment Center process.  If the 
city selects the Assessment Center process MOULDER AND ASSOCIATES LLC fees will be 
reduced by $2,000. 
 

 
 



North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Who we are 
 

William H. Moulder 
I have been in law enforcement forty-four years.  The last eighteen years I served as 
Police Chief for Des Moines, Iowa.  I retired in 2003.  I have a Master’s Degree in 
Public Administration and served as chair of the Resolutions Committee for the 
International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP) for twenty years.  The Resolutions 
Committee guides the policy for IACP.  I have been the Legislative Committee chair 
for the Iowa Police Executive Forum, a statewide organization of Chiefs of Police and I 
have served as the chair of the Polk County Chiefs and Sheriff’s Association.   
 
Following my retirement from Des Moines, I formed MOULDER AND ASSOCIATES LLC, an 
organization designed to provide a wide range of technical and administrative services 
for local government and law enforcement agencies. 
 

Stephen Niebur: 
Chief Niebur has been in law enforcement forty-two years.  He served as Police Chief 
in Osceola, Iowa, for sixteen years.  He retired in 2004.  He is a graduate of the 
Southern Police Institute Administrative Officers Course.  Chief Niebur was one of four 
Police Chiefs selected to serve on the “DARE America” Curriculum Advisory Board and 
he was the North Central Regional Chair for the State Association of Chiefs of Police 
Division of IACP.  He is past president of the Iowa Police Executive Forum and served 
as a committee member for the Iowa Law Enforcement Academy, Curriculum 
Committee.  
 
Our experience in both large and small police agencies gives us a unique and broad 
management perspective. 
 
Chief Niebur and I began our police careers as patrol partners in the Kansas City, 
Missouri, Police Department.  We independently obtained positions of Chiefs of Police 
in Iowa. 
 

Jack Lipovac HR-OneSource 
Labor Relations and Human Resource Consultant 
10 years with HR-OneSource 
10 years with Jack A. Lipovac & Associates 
15 years with Industries Council of Iowa 
 
Adjunct Instructor - Employment Law 
Iowa State University 
Des Moines Area Community College 
 
Human Resource Executive 
Industries Council of Iowa 



North Liberty Scope of Services 
Page 6 of 6 
 

Iowa Association of School Boards 
Rita Sportswear 
 
Education 
M.A.  Personnel & Labor Relations, University of Iowa 
B.B.A.  Business Administration, University of Iowa 
 
Professional Memberships 
Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) 
Vice President of the Central Iowa Chapter of SHRM 
Industrial Relations Research Association 
Urbandale Chamber of Commerce, Small Business Committee Chair 
 
Jack owns and operates HR-OneSource, a human resource-consulting firm that 
performs a wide range of services for both public and private employers in the areas 
of human resources and labor relations.  The firm works with diverse employers, such 
as cities, counties, health care providers, school districts, manufacturing and service 
firms.  Jack negotiates more than 25 union contracts each year in both the public and 
private sector.  He represents employers at PERB/NLRB hearings and civil rights 
investigations, and develops personnel policies and job descriptions for a variety of 
private and public employers.  Jack presents seminars and training sessions on human 
resources and labor relations topics.  He assists employers in developing competitive 
wage systems by completing wage surveys and performing job evaluations.  Jack 
performs job searches for executive and administrative level employees by recruiting, 
screening, and interviewing job applicants. 
 

Chief Jeff Cayler, Cayler Consulting LLC 
Chief Cayler has served in law enforcement for 32 ½ years, with the last 29 years in 
the capacity of Chief of Police for the city of Carroll.  He holds a Master’s Degree in 
Criminal Justice Administration.  He has also served as the administrator of the Carroll 
City/County Communications center for 28 years.  Chief Cayler served on the National 
Advisory Policy Board for the CJIS (Criminal Justice Information System) Division of 
the FBI, is a past president of the Iowa Police Executive Forum, and long-time 
Chairman of the Region V Drug Task Force.  In addition to these duties, Chief Cayler 
also served as an adjunct professor of Criminal Justice at Buena Vista University from 
2000 – 2012. 
 
Approximately 18 years ago Chief Cayler began providing consulting services to cities, 
primarily in the area of recruitment and selection of police chiefs and assisting cities 
with internal promotional testing.  In August of 2013 he established Cayler Consulting, 
LLC.  He retired from the position of police chief June 8, 2015. 
 



North Liberty Fire Department 
Fire Chief Selection Process 

Dates TBD 
 

AGENDA 
 
Date TBD (Spouses invited) 
Noon – 1:00 PM  Lunch with City Administrator and Mayor 
1:15 PM – 3:00 PM Community tour with spouses  
3:15 PM – 5:15 PM  Fire Department Staff Open House 
5:00 PM – 6:30 PM Public Open House with spouses  
 
Date TBD
7:15 – 7:30 Orientation
 
7:30 – 12:00

 
Presentation & Written Exercise preparation

 
7:30 – 8:30

 
Candidate # 1 – Interview with Fire 
Service Professionals

 
Candidate # 4 – Interview with 
Management Team 

 
8:40 – 9:40

 
Candidate # 2 – Interview with Fire 
Service Professionals 

 
Candidate # 1 – Interview with 
Management Team

 
9:50 – 10:50 
 

 
Candidate # 3 – Interview with Fire 
Service Professionals  

 
Candidate # 2 – Interview with 
Management Team 
 

11:00 – 12:00 Candidate # 4 – Interview with Fire 
Service Professionals 

Candidate # 3 – Interview with 
Management Team

   
12:00 Written Exercise & Presentation materials due  

 
12:00 – 12:40 
 

Lunch (Assessors will finish scoring morning exercises)

12:45 – 1:15 Candidate # 1 - Presentation Candidate # 4 – Interview with CA 
 
1:25 – 1:55 
 

 
Candidate # 2 - Presentation

 
Candidate # 1 – Interview with CA 
 

2:05 – 2:35 Candidate # 3- Presentation Candidate # 2 – Interview with CA 
 

2:45 – 3:15 Candidate # 4 - Presentation Candidate # 3 – Interview with CA 
 
3:15 – 3:30 Compile scores & complete evaluation / Interview groups discuss candidates 
 
3:30 - ????? Assessor(s) discuss results of assessment center with City Administrator  









THE ASSESSMENT CENTER - A Measure of Competence 
 
The assessment center testing process provides an accurate measurement of a 
candidate’s competence to perform a given task, function or undertaking in a 
predictable manner.  Typically, Chief Cayler and two additional law enforcement or fire 
service administrators will assess selected candidates’ abilities in a one-day assessment 
center process.  Using information obtained from questionnaires, the position profile 
and discussions with city staff, Chief Cayler will prepare a series of exercises that are 
designed to simulate duties or tasks that might occur during a normal workday for a 
given position or rank.  These exercises are designed to assess the candidates’ ability to 
perform in situations that would be typical for a person in that position.  They are also 
designed to assess the candidates’ writing ability and working knowledge of legal 
issues, departmental operations, personnel management, and law enforcement and/or 
fire service trends.  An assessment center process: 
 

• Levels the playing field by providing all candidates an equal opportunity to 
demonstrate their competency 

• Provides for an objective, disinterested view from professional evaluators 
• Places the candidate in a controlled environment 
• Establishes a reliable prediction of performance through the use of a definable 

set of measurements of a candidate’s competence 
• Builds multi-layered tasks --- ability to measure a candidate’s competency in 

several areas at once 
• Defeats a candidate’s ability in hide behind a one-dimensional talent 
• Mirrors real world scenarios in a controlled manner 

 
CRITICAL MANAGEMENT DIMENSIONS 
 
Each assessment exercise is designed to measure the candidate’s level of competence 
within three or more of 11 Critical Management Dimensions (competencies).  
Management Dimensions are those elements of competence that are relevant within the 
specific function of supervising and managing operations or personnel.  (i.e.: What 
important abilities and skills are required in order to fulfill the position?) 
 
Critical Management Dimensions are identified as: 
 
Analysis:  The determination of core elements.  Relating and comparing information 
from different sources, identifying issues, securing relevant information and identifying 
relationships. 
 
Consensus Building:  The utilization of interpersonal skills to influence the collective 
opinion and solicit general agreement. 
 



Decisiveness:  Readiness to make decisions, render judgments, take action or commit 
oneself. 
 
Development of Subordinates:  Developing the skills and competencies of 
subordinates through training and development activities related to current and future 
jobs. 
 
Follow-up:  The act of tracking action taken and plans made.  This tracking is made 
for the efficiency and assessment of action steps taken. 
 
Initiative:  Actively attempts to influence events to achieve goals; self-starting rather 
than passively accepting.  Taking action to achieve goals beyond what is necessarily 
called for; originating action.  Following through energetically. 
 
Judgment:  The capacity to make high quality decisions which are based on logical 
assumptions and which reflect factual information.  A conclusion based on a 
discriminating appraisal of known information. 
 
Leadership:  Utilizing appropriate interpersonal styles and methods of communication 
in order to set a course or vision for an organization.  To guide individuals or groups 
towards task accomplishment or acceptance of an idea demonstrating “big picture” 
thinking; vision. 
 
Oral Communication Skills:  Effective expression in individual or group situations, 
whether spontaneous or when given time for preparation (includes both verbal and 
non-verbal cues). 
 
Planning and Organization:  Establishing a course of action for self and/or others to 
accomplish a specific goal; planning proper assignments of personnel and appropriate 
allocation of resources or assets.  A process of order; a method worked out beforehand. 
 
Written Communication Skills:  Clear expression of ideas in writing. 
 
At the conclusion of the assessment center, Chief Cayler and the other assessors will 
meet with representatives of the city and go over the outcome of the process and 
discuss their views on each of the candidates.  A final written report is also generated 
discussing the process and the results of the assessment center. 
 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-53 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-53 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
MOULDER AND ASSOCIATES AND THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA REGARDING THE FIRE CHIEF POSITION 
EXECUTIVE SEARCH 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to enter into an agreement with Moulder and 

Associates including Cayler Consulting regarding the search process for the Fire Chief 
Position,  

 
WHEREAS, the agreements establish the terms and conditions for the city’s use of 

the two firms during the search,  
 
WHEREAS, the fees from Moulder and Associates will be estimated at $16,000 

including the fees from Cayler Consulting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the terms and conditions have been set forth in the attached 

agreements, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreements between 

the City of North Liberty and Moulder and Associates and Cayler Consulting are approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute said 

agreements.  
  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Police Station Project 
 



City of North Liberty 
New Police Station 
Proposed Project Schedule (UPDATED 04.11.17) 
 

‐‐‐ Phase 1 – Public Outreach & Education ‐‐‐ 
 
March 12 – March 27, 2017 
Media outreach:  Work with media (e.g., KGAN, KCRG, Leader, Gazette, P‐C, KXIC, WMT, KCJJ) to produce 2‐4 
stories about PD’s need, history and future. 

 
March 15 – mid‐April 2017 
Social media:  About once a week share information related to the PD’s need via City’s social feeds. This includes 
sharing stories from local media, materials prepared for the March 29 open house, virtual tour video, etc. 

 
March 29, 2017 
Project Open House:  Present information including timeline of PD size, of current PD building and concept of 
proposed Police Station; highlight the overall civic campus vision. 

 
Early – mid‐April 2017 
Police Department Open House:  Invite the public to the police department for a tour of the station to get a sense 
of current conditions.  Numerous tours would be scheduled on a various days to provide ample opportunity for the 
public to see the existing facility.  

 

‐‐‐ Phase 2 – Financing ‐‐‐ 
 
April 25, 2017 
Council sets hearing date for Urban Renewal Plan Amendment. 

 
April 28 ‐ May 22, 2017   
Notice and consultation period in which City consults with County and School, completes public building feasibility 
analysis in plan amendment, and publishes hearing notice. 

 
May 23, 2017 
Council holds hearing and takes action to approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment. 

 
Council sets hearing date on G.O. borrowing proposal for police station funding. 

 
June 13, 2017 
Council holds hearing and if no petition is submitted, the City is vested with authority to issue the G.O. debt. 
 
Council approves design proposal with Shive Hattery. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



‐‐‐ Phase 3 – Design & Construction ‐‐‐ 
 
June – August 2017 
Concept Design Phase 

 Programming/planning  

 Conceptual design  

 Cost opinion/draft concept report  

 Final deliverable: concept  
 
September – October 2017 
Schematic Design Concept Phase 

 Define interior walls 

 Define exterior walls 

 Finalize elevations 

 Size mechanical/electrical rooms 

 Site design 

 Deliverable and review  

 Revision and cost opinion  
 
November 2017 – February 2018 
Design development and contract documents phases 
 
March – mid‐April 2018 
Bidding period  
 

April 24, 2018 
Award construction bid to contractor 
 

May 2018 – April 2019 
Construction 

 
May 7, 2019 
First day of full operations at the new North Liberty Police Station 



 
North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-54 
Page 1 
 

HEARING AND APPROVAL OF 2017 
AMENDMENT TO THE NORTH LIBERTY 
URBAN RENEWAL AREA  

421033-72 

North Liberty, Iowa 

May 23, 2017 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on May 23, 2017, at 
6:30 o’clock, p.m., at the Council Chambers, in the City for the purpose of conducting a 
public hearing on a proposed urban renewal plan amendment.  The Mayor presided and 
the roll being called the following members of the Council were present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:    . 

The City Council investigated and found that notice of the intention of the Council to 
conduct a public hearing on the urban renewal plan amendment had been published 
according to law and as directed by the Council and that this is the time and place at which 
the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any resident or property owner of 
the City.  All written objections, statements, and evidence heretofore filed were reported to 
the City Council, and all oral objections, statements, and all other exhibits presented were 
considered. 

The following named persons presented oral objections, statements, or evidence as 
summarized below; filed written objections or statements, copies of which are attached 
hereto; or presented other exhibits, copies of which are attached hereto: 

(Here list all persons presenting written or oral statements or evidence and 
summarize each presentation.) 



 
North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-54 
Page 2 
 

There being no further objections, comments, or evidence offered, the Mayor 
announced the hearing closed. 

Council Member ______________________ moved the adoption of a resolution entitled 
“Resolution to Approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment for the North Liberty Urban 
Renewal Area,” seconded by Council Member ______________________.  After due consideration, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and the roll being called, the following named 
Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted and signed approval 
thereto. 



 
North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-54 
Page 3 
 

 

Resolution No. 2017-54 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENT FOR 
THE NORTH LIBERTY URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

WHEREAS, as a preliminary step to exercising the authority conferred upon Iowa 
cities by Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa (the “Urban Renewal Law”), a municipality must 
adopt a resolution finding that one or more slums, blighted or economic development areas 
exist in the municipality and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, 
development or a combination thereof, of such area or areas is necessary in the interest of 
the public health, safety or welfare of the residents of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa (the “City”), by prior 
resolution established the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”) 
and adopted an urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) for the governance of projects and 
initiatives therein; and 

WHEREAS, an amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Plan has been prepared which 
authorizes the undertaking of a new urban renewal project in the Urban Renewal Area 
consisting of the financing and construction of a new police station to be situated on real 
property on the north side of Cherry Street between Front Street and Main Street; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing by the City Council on the proposed 
Amendment was heretofore given in strict compliance with the provisions of Chapter 403 
of the Code of Iowa, and the Council has conducted said hearing on May 23, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, copies of the Amendment, notice of public hearing and notice of a 
consultation meeting with respect to the Amendment were mailed to Johnson County, the 
Iowa City Community School District and the Clear Creek Amana Community School 
District; the consultation meeting was held on the 10th day of May, 2017; and responses to 
any comments or recommendations received following the consultation meeting were 
made as required by law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The Amendment, attached hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby in 
all respects approved. 



 
North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-54 
Page 4 
 

 

 Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed, to the extent of such conflict. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

  

(Attach copy of the urban renewal plan amendment to this resolution.) 

• • • • 

Upon motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 
North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-54 
Page 5 
 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 
acting City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, and that as such I have in my possession or 
have access to the complete corporate records of the City and of its officers; and that I have 
carefully compared the transcript hereto attached with the aforesaid records and that the 
attached is a true, correct and complete copy of the corporate records relating to the action 
taken by the City Council preliminary to and in connection with approving the urban 
renewal plan amendment for the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area in the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of ______________________, 2017. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
NORTH LIBERTY URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
May 23, 2017 

The Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) for the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area (the 
“Urban Renewal Area”) is being amended for the purpose of identifying a new urban renewal 
project to be undertaken therein. 

1)  Identification of Project. By virtue of this amendment, the list of authorized 
urban renewal projects in the Plan is hereby amended to include the following project 
descriptions: 

Name of Project: 2017 Police Station Project (the “Police Station Project”) 

Name of Urban Renewal Area: North Liberty Urban Renewal Area 

Date of Council Approval of Project: May 23, 2017 

Description of Project and Project Site: The Police Station Project will consist of the 
construction of a new police station situated on real property on the north side of Cherry 
Street between Front Street and Main Street in the Urban Renewal Area.   
 
The completed Police Station Project will have a direct, positive impact on increased and 
improved commerce and development in the Urban Renewal Area through the provision 
of enhanced police protection, municipal services and municipal facilities. 
 
Description of Financing Plan for the Project: The City will use its urban renewal 
authority to aid in the authorization of general obligation bonds (the “Bonds”) in a 
principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000 to finance the Police Station Project.  The 
City does not intend to apply incremental property tax revenues to the repayment of the 
Bonds.  If the City determines to apply incremental property tax revenues to the 
repayment of the Bonds in the future, the City will amend the Plan to reflect the required 
analysis under Section 403.5(2)(b)(1) of the Code of Iowa prior to the issuance of such 
Bonds. 

2) Required Financial Information. The following information is provided in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 403.17 of the Code of Iowa: 
 

 Constitutional debt limit of the City:    $73,533,856  
 Outstanding general obligation debt of the City:  $35,073,000    
 Proposed debt to be incurred in connection  
 with this May, 2017 Amendment    $40,073,000  



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 1 
 

MINUTES TO SET DATE FOR HEARING 
ON PROPOSAL TO ENTER INTO A LOAN 
AGREEMENT 

421033-72 

North Liberty, Iowa 

May 23, 2017 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on May 23, 2017, at 6:30 
o’clock p.m., at the Council Chambers, North Liberty, Iowa.  The Mayor presided and the roll 
was called showing the following members of the City Council present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

Council Member _____________________ introduced the resolution hereinafter next set 
out and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member ____________________; and after due 
consideration thereof by the City Council, the Mayor put the question upon the adoption of 
the said resolution and the roll being called, the following named Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 

• • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting and upon motion and vote, the City Council 
adjourned. 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 2 
 

Resolution No. 2017-55 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
ON PROPOSAL TO ENTER INTO A GENERAL OBLIGATION 
LOAN AGREEMENT AND TO BORROW MONEY 
THEREUNDER IN A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$5,000,000 

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty (the “City”), in Johnson County, State of Iowa, 
proposes to enter into a General Obligation Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) and to 
borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000 for the purpose 
of paying the cost, to that extent, of undertaking an urban renewal project in the North 
Liberty Urban Renewal Area consisting of constructing, furnishing and equipping a new 
police station (the “Project”), and in lieu of calling an election thereon, the City desires to 
institute proceedings to enter into the Loan Agreement by causing a notice of such proposal 
to be published, including notice of the right to petition for an election, under the 
provisions of Section 384.24(3)(q) of the Code of Iowa;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa, as follows: 

 
Section 1. The City Council shall meet on June 13, 2017, at the Council Chambers, 

North Liberty, Iowa, at 6:30 p.m., at which time and place a hearing will be held and 
proceedings will be instituted and action taken to enter into the  Loan Agreement described 
in the preamble hereof. 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to give notice of the proposed action 
on the Loan Agreement setting forth the amount and purpose thereof, the time when and 
place where the said meeting will be held by publication at least once and not less than ten 
(10) and not more than twenty (20) days before the date selected for the meeting, in a legal 
newspaper which has a general circulation in the City.  The notice shall be in substantially 
the following form: 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 3 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO ENTER 
INTO A LOAN AGREEMENT AND TO BORROW MONEY THEREUNDER IN A 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $5,000,000 

(GENERAL OBLIGATION) 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, will meet on June 13, 2017, at the 
Council Chambers, North Liberty, Iowa, at 6:30 p.m., for the purpose of instituting 
proceedings and taking action on a proposal to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan 
Agreement”) and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed 
$5,000,000 for the purpose of paying the cost, to that extent, of undertaking an urban 
renewal project in the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area consisting of constructing, 
furnishing and equipping a new police station. 

The Loan Agreement is proposed to be entered into pursuant to authority contained 
in Section 384.24A and Section 384.24.3(q) of the Code of Iowa and will constitute a 
general obligation of the City.   

At any time before the date fixed for taking action to enter into the Loan Agreement, 
a petition may be filed with the City Clerk of the City asking that the question of entering 
into the Loan Agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the City, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 384.26 of the Code of Iowa.  If no such petition is filed, at the 
aforementioned time and place, oral or written objections may be filed or made to the 
proposal to enter into the Loan Agreement.  After receiving objections, the City may 
determine to enter into the Loan Agreement, in which case, the decision will be final unless 
appealed to the District Court within fifteen (15) days thereafter. 

 
By order of the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa. 

Tracey Mulcahey 
City Clerk 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 4 
 

Section 5. Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the 
“Regulations”) of the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to 
undertake the Project which is reasonably estimated to cost approximately $5,000,000, (b) 
that other than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed from sources other than the 
issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations (the “Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not 
earlier than 60 days prior to the date of this Resolution or a previous intent resolution of 
the City, or (iii) expenditures amounting to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of 
the Bonds, or (iv) expenditures constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in Section 
1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, no expenditures for the Project has heretofore been made 
by the City and no expenditures will be made by the City until after the date of this 
Resolution or a prior intent resolution of the City, and (c) that the City reasonably expects 
to reimburse the expenditures made for costs of the City out of the proceeds of the Bonds.  
This declaration is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of 
the Regulations.  

Section 6. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 5 
 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE:  

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON  SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that 
attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council relating to 
fixing a date for additional action on the City’s proposals to enter into a certain loan 
agreement, as referred to therein. 

WITNESS MY HAND this _____ day of __________________, 2017. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 6 
 

ORGANIZATION CERTIFICATE:  
 
STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON  SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
 I, the undersigned City Clerk, do hereby certify that the City of North Liberty is 
organized and operating under the provisions of Title IX of the Code of Iowa and not under 
any special charter and that the City is operating under the Mayor-Council form of 
government and that there is not pending or threatened any question or litigation 
whatsoever touching the incorporation of the City, the inclusion of any territory within its 
limits or the incumbency in office of any of the officials hereinafter named. 
 
 And I do further certify that the following named parties are officials of the City as 
indicated: 
 Terry L. Donahue, Mayor 
 
 Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 
 Debra Hilton, Treasurer 
 
 Chris Hoffman, Council Member/Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
 Sarah Madsen, Council Member 
 
  Annie Pollock, Council Member 
 
  Jim Sayre, Council Member 
 
  Brian Wayson, Council Member 
 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
 
             
       TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 

 

 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-55 
Page 7 
 

PUBLICATION CERTIFICATE:  
 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that 
pursuant to the resolution of the City Council fixing a date of meeting at which it is 
proposed to take action to enter into a certain loan agreement, the notice, of which the 
printed slip attached to the publisher’s affidavit hereto attached is a true and complete 
copy, was published on the date and in the newspaper specified in such affidavit, which 
newspaper has a general circulation in the City. 

 

WITNESS MY HAND this ______ day of ________________, 2017. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 
 (Attach here the publisher’s original affidavit with a clipping of the notice, as 
published.) 
 
(PLEASE NOTE:  Do not date and return this certificate until you have received the 
publisher’s affidavit and have verified that the notice was published on the date 
indicated in the affidavit, but please return all other completed pages to us as soon 
as they are available.) 



 

 
 

FY 2017 Budget 
 



485
Jun-15

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
Form 653.C1 AMENDMENT OF FY2016-2017 CITY BUDGET

    The City Council of North Liberty in Johnson County County, Iowa

will meet at 
at 6:30 p.m. on 05/23/2017

(hour) (Date)

 ,for the purpose of amending the current budget of the city for the fiscal year ending June 30 2017
(year)

 by changing estimates of revenue and expenditure appropriations in the following functions for the reasons given.

 Additional detail is available at the city clerk's office showing revenues and expenditures by fund type and by activity.

Total Budget Total Budget

as certified Current after Current

or last amended Amendment Amendment

Revenues & Other Financing Sources
Taxes Levied on Property 1 8,518,974 0 8,518,974
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0
   Net Current Property Taxes 3 8,518,974 0 8,518,974
Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 4,276,891 0 4,276,891
Other City Taxes 6 208,033 0 208,033
Licenses & Permits 7 715,000 0 715,000
Use of Money and Property 8 154,100 0 154,100
Intergovernmental 9 2,977,653 2,346,021 5,323,674
Charges for Services 10 9,324,497 29,000 9,353,497
Special Assessments 11 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 12 81,200 919,403 1,000,603
Other Financing Sources 13 25,038,000 12,707,557 37,745,557
Transfers In 14 10,269,026 0 10,269,026
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 61,563,374 16,001,981 77,565,355

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses
Public Safety 16 3,439,598 200,384 3,639,982
Public Works 17 1,806,533 331,101 2,137,634
Health and Social Services 18 97,500 6,000 103,500
Culture and Recreation 19 4,146,528 169,030 4,315,558
Community and Economic Development 20 1,979,449 ‐894 1,978,555
General Government 21 1,534,702 23,699 1,558,401
Debt Service 22 5,394,872 5,520,856 10,915,728
Capital Projects 23 5,466,000 3,342,000 8,808,000
    Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 23,865,182 9,592,176 33,457,358
Business Type / Enterprises 25 26,503,154 9,198,079 35,701,233
Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditure 26 50,368,336 18,790,255 69,158,591
 Transfers Out 27 10,269,026 0 10,269,026
Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 60,637,362 18,790,255 79,427,617
Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out Fiscal Y 29 926,012 -2,788,274 -1,862,262

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 10,953,400 2,307,215 13,260,615
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 11,879,412 -481,059 11,398,353

City Council Chambers, 3 Quail Creek Circle

SAFER funds, Contributions 
from other cities and 
school district, 
Hwy 965 grant funds, 
Police OT reimbursement, 
Road Use Funds, County 
Library contribution 

Vending revenue, 
Customer Deposits 

Developer fees; donations -
Library, K-9, Police, and 
general donations; tree 
grants

Bond proceeds for 
refunding of existing 
bonds.  SRF proceeds 
above what was projected.

Police overtime 
(reimbursed); Worker's 
Comp increase; Police 
tuition reimbursement; 
Ammunition; Fire Repairs 
to truck; SAFER expends

Garbage and recycling 
costs; Street expends (due 
to miscellaneous 
revenues); Worker's Comp 
increase

Additional programming 
costs 

Library costs funded by 
grants and donations; 
Worker's Comp increase; 
Rec van accident repairs; 
Pool float replacement 
after theft; Cemetery cost 
increase

Data entry correction 

Special election costs; 
Credit card fees; 
Hotel/Motel tax 
expenditures; Worker's 
Comp costs

Bond refunding 
expenditures 

Project costs that carried 
over from previous fiscal 
year 

Actual number from FY 16 
Audit 



52-485
            CITY BUDGET AMENDMENT AND CERTIFICATION RESOLUTION - FY 2017 - AMENDMENT #1

      To the Auditor of County, Iowa:

      The City Council of North Liberty           in said County/Counties met on 05/23/2017
      ,at the place and hour set in the notice, a copy of which accompanies this certificate and is certified as to 
      publication. Upon taking up the proposed amendment, it was considered and taxpayers were heard for and against
      the amendment.

      The Council, after hearing all taxpayers wishing to be heard and considering the statements made by them, gave
      final consideration to the proposed amendment(s) to the budget and modifications proposed at the hearing, if any.
      thereupon, the following resolution was introduced.

RESOLUTION No. 2017-56

                 A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CURRENT BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 3 2017
                                                   (AS AMENDED LAST ON N/A .)
       Be it Resolved by the Council of the City of North Liberty
                    Section 1. Following notice published 05/11/2017
and the public hearing held, 05/23/2017 the current budget (as previously amended) is amended as set out
herein and in the detail by fund type and activity that supports this resolution which was considered at that hearing:

Total Budget  Total Budget
as certified Current after Current

or last amended Amendment Amendment
Revenues & Other Financing Sources
Taxes Levied on Property 1 8,518,974 0 8,518,974
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0
   Net Current Property Taxes 3 8,518,974 0 8,518,974
Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 4,276,891 0 4,276,891
Other City Taxes 6 208,033 0 208,033
Licenses & Permits 7 715,000 0 715,000
Use of Money and Property 8 154,100 0 154,100
Intergovernmental 9 2,977,653 2,346,021 5,323,674
Charges for Services 10 9,324,497 29,000 9,353,497
Special Assessments 11 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 12 81,200 919,403 1,000,603
Other Financing Sources 13 25,038,000 12,707,557 37,745,557
Transfers In 14 10,269,026 0 10,269,026
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 61,563,374 16,001,981 77,565,355

Expenditures & Other Financing Uses
Public Safety 16 3,439,598 200,384 3,639,982
Public Works 17 1,806,533 331,101 2,137,634
Health and Social Services 18 97,500 6,000 103,500
Culture and Recreation 19 4,146,528 169,030 4,315,558
Community and Economic Development 20 1,979,449 -894 1,978,555
General Government 21 1,534,702 23,699 1,558,401
Debt Service 22 5,394,872 5,520,856 10,915,728
Capital Projects 23 5,466,000 3,342,000 8,808,000
    Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 23,865,182 9,592,176 33,457,358
Business Type / Enterprises 25 26,503,154 9,198,079 35,701,233
Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 50,368,336 18,790,255 69,158,591
 Transfers Out 27 10,269,026 0 10,269,026
Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 60,637,362 18,790,255 79,427,617
Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out Fiscal Year 29 926,012 -2,788,274 -1,862,262

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 10,953,400 2,307,215 13,260,615
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 11,879,412 -481,059 11,398,353

Passed this 23  day of May, 2017
(Day) (Month/Year)

Signature Signature 
City Clerk/Finance Officer Mayor

JOHNSON



 

 
 

Backflow Prevention 
Ordinance 

 



 

City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-03 
Page: 1 

Ordinance No. 2017-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 90 OF THE NORTH LIBERTY 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADDRESS BACKFLOW PREVENTION IN 
CITY’S WATER SERVICE SYSTEM 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 90, "Water Service System,” of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances (2016) is hereby amended by adding Section 90.21, "Backflow 
Prevention," to read as follows: 
 
90.21  BACKFLOW PREVENTION. 
 

1. Definitions.  For use in this section, terms are defined in the current 
International Plumbing Code, as adopted and amended in Chapter 157 of this Code.  

2. Applicability.  A potable water supply system shall be designed, installed 
and maintained in such a manner so as to prevent contamination from nonpotable 
liquids, solids or gases being introduced into the potable water supply through cross 
connections or any other piping connections to the system. 

 A. The potable water supply to automatic fire sprinkler and standpipe 
systems shall be protected against backflow by a double check backflow 
prevention assembly, a double check fire protection backflow prevention 
assembly or a reduced pressure principle fire protection backflow 
prevention assembly. 

  B. The potable water supply to lawn irrigation systems shall be 
protected against backflow by an atmospheric vacuum breaker, a pressure 
vacuum breaker assembly or a reduced pressure principle backflow 
prevention assembly. Valves shall not be installed downstream from an 
atmospheric vacuum breaker. Where chemicals are introduced into the 
system, the potable water supply shall be protected against backflow by a 
reduced pressure principle backflow prevention assembly. 

 C. Where a potable water connection is made to a nonpotable line, 
fixture, tank, vat, pump or other equipment subject to high hazard 
backpressure, the potable water connection shall be protected by a reduced 
pressure principle backflow prevention assembly. 

  D. Where chemical dispensers connect to the potable water distribution 
system, the water supply system shall be protected against backflow in 
accordance with plumbing code. 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-03 
Page: 2 

 E. Where the portable cleaning equipment connects to the water 
distribution system, the water supply system shall be protected against 
backflow in accordance with the plumbing code. 

 F. Where dental pumping equipment connects to the water distribution 
system, the water supply system shall be protected against backflow in 
accordance with the plumbing code. 

G. The water supply connection to coffee machines and noncarbonated 
beverage dispensers shall be protected against backflow by a backflow 
preventer conforming to ASSE 1022 or by an air gap.  
 

3. Devices.  Reduced pressure principle, double check, pressure vacuum 
breaker, reduced pressure detector fire protection, double check detector fire 
protection, and spill-resistant vacuum breaker backflow preventer assemblies and 
hose connection backflow preventers shall be tested at the time of installation, 
immediately after repairs or relocation, and at least annually. 

4. Responsibility for Administration.  The Building Official shall administer, 
implement, and enforce the provisions of this section.  Any powers granted or 
duties imposed upon the Building Official may be delegated by the Building Official 
to persons or entities acting in the beneficial interest of or in the employ of the City. 

5. Right of Entry.  The Building Official shall be permitted access to a 
customer’s premises, upon showing proper identification or upon search warrant by 
a court of appropriate jurisdiction, as often as necessary to ensure compliance with 
this section. 

6. New Water Services and Modifications to Existing Services.  Prior to the 
issuance of a building permit, the contractor/builder shall submit plans for a new 
water service or modifications to an existing service to the Building Official for 
review.  The Building Official shall determine the type of backflow prevention 
assembly required for containment based upon the degree of hazard.  The Building 
Official shall require the installation of the appropriate backflow prevention 
assembly for containment prior to the initiation of water service. 

7. Containment/Isolation.  All customers whose premises are not classified as 
single-family residential by the Building Official shall be inspected by the Building 
Official to determine the type and degree of hazard to the water system.  Upon 
conclusion of the inspection, the Building Official shall determine the type of 
backflow prevention assembly required to achieve containment and 
isolation.  Upon written notice, the customer, at the customer’s own expense, shall 
install all backflow prevention assemblies mandated by the Building Official. 

8. Annual Report and Inspection by Customer.  When a water service is 
initially installed or an existing water service is modified, the service shall be tested 
and approved by the Building Official.  Every twelve (12) months thereafter, the 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-03 
Page: 3 

customer shall submit to the Building Official a report from a registered backflow 
prevention assembly technician, certifying that containment and isolation on the 
customer’s premises have been achieved. 

9. Annual Certification Fee.  For each annual certification report, as required in 
Paragraph 6, the customer shall pay a fee, the amount for which shall be set by 
resolution of the City Council. 
 

SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on April 25, 2017. 
Second reading on May 9, 2017. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:   ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________   ________________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-03 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the _____ day of _________________, 2017.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Electrician/Plumber 
Ordinance 

 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-04 
Page: 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2017-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 125, “ELECTRICIAN AND 
PLUMBER LICENSES,” OF THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY REPEALING CHAPTER 125 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 125, "Electrician and Plumber Licenses," of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances (2016) is hereby amended by repealing it in full. 
 
SECTION 2. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on April 25, 2017. 
Second reading on May 9, 2017. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:   ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR  TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-04 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the _____ day of _________________, 2017.   
 
_________________________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

Water Rate Ordinance 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-06 
Page: 1 

Ordinance No. 2017-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 92.02, ENTITLED "RATES 
FOR SERVICE," OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF NORTH LIBERTY 
BY ADOPTING A NEW SECTION 92.02 TO INCREASE THE CHARGES 
FOR WATER USED 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT  Chapter 92.02 “Rates for Service," of the Municipal Code of 
North Liberty be, and the same is hereby amended, by repealing Section 92.02 therein, and 
enacting in lieu thereof new sections to be codified the same to read as follows: 
 

92.02 RATES FOR SERVICE.   
 

Gallons Used Per Month Rate 
First 1,000 gallons $ 15.57 
All over 1,000 gallons $   6.29 

 
Service to industrial establishments may be by contract, if the City finds such an 
arrangement to be in the best interest of the City. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
 
First reading on May 9, 2017. 
Second reading ______________________ 
Third and final reading _______________ 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-06 
Page: 2 

I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-06 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the __ day of ______, 2017.  
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Sewer Rate Ordinance 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-07 
Page: 1 

Ordinance No. 2017-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 99.02 ENTITLED "RATE," 
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF NORTH LIBERTY BY ADOPTING A 
NEW SECTION 99.02 TO INCREASE THE CHARGES FOR SANITARY 
SEWER SERVICES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT  Chapter 99.02 “Rate," of the Municipal Code of North Liberty 
be, and the same is hereby amended, by repealing Section 99.02 therein, and enacting in 
lieu thereof new sections to be codified the same to read as follows: 
 

99.02 RATE.   
 

Gallons Used Per Month Rate 
First 1,000 gallons $ 30.03 
All over 1,000 gallons $   5.40 

 
Service to industrial establishments may be by contract, if the City finds such an 
arrangement to be in the best interest of the City. 
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on May 9, 2017. 
Second reading __________________ 
Third and final reading ________________ 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2017   Ordinance Number 2017-07 
Page: 2 

I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2017-07 in the North Liberty 
Leader on the ___ day of _______, 2017.   
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
           



 

 
 

IDOT Agreement – 
Forevergreen Road 

 



February 2015 
 

 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Cooperative Agreement 

For Primary Road Project 
 

County  Johnson 
City North Liberty 
Project No.  NHS-380-6(320)2—11-52 (P.E.) 

IMN-380-6(321)2—0E-52 (Grade & Pave) 
IMN-380-6(337)2—0E-52 (Grade & Pave) 
IMN-380-6(333)2—0E-52 (Wetland Bank) 
IMN-380-6(334)2—0E-52 (Stream Mitigation) 
IMN-380-6(324)2--0E-52 (ROW) 
IMN-380-6(344)2--0E-52 (ROW) 

Iowa DOT  
Agreement No.  2015-16-255 
Staff Action No.  

 
This Agreement, is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the "DOT", and the City of North Liberty, Iowa, a Local Public Agency, hereafter designated 
the "LPA" in accordance with Iowa Code Chapters 28E, 306, 306A and 313.4 as applicable; 
 
The DOT proposes to establish or make improvements to the W. Forevergreen Road local roadway from 
just east of Kansas Avenue (east end of I-380/Forevergreen Road Interchange project) to S. Jones Blvd.; 
 
The DOT and the LPA are willing to jointly participate in said projects, in the manner hereinafter provided;  
 
The DOT and the LPA have entered into Agreement No. 2017-1-145, which is for right of way acquisition 
for construction of a new interchange on I-380 at W. Forevergreen Road in Johnson County, North 
Liberty; and 
 
This Agreement reflects the current concepts of these projects which are subject to modification by 
mutual agreement between the LPA and the DOT. 
 
Therefore, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. Project Information 
 
a. The DOT will design, let, and inspect construction of the following described projects in accordance 

with the project plans, and DOT standard specifications, except as noted herein: 
 

Construction of local road improvements on W. Forevergreen Road, hereafter referred to as 
Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements, necessary for incident management during 
reconstruction of the I-380/I-80 interchange. The W. Forevergreen Road Local Road projects are 
to be consistent with the LPA’s long range plan and include conversion of W. Forevergreen Road, 
from east of Kansas Avenue to near Jones Boulevard, to a minimum of a three-lane paved 
roadway.  The Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements are comprised of two projects: 
 

• Project (337) from east of Kansas Ave to near Covered Bridge Blvd 
• Project (321) from near Covered Bridge Blvd to near Jones Blvd 

 
See Exhibit A for location and graphic representation of the projects [Project (337) in yellow and 
Project (321) in green]. 
 
See Exhibit B for roadway costs to be shared by the DOT and LPA (first page) and the total 
project costs (second page). 
 



February 2015 
 

 2 

Projects related to the construction of the Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements include 
wetland bank mitigation hereafter referred to as Project (333), and stream mitigation hereafter 
referred to as Project (334). 

 
2. Jurisdictional Responsibilities for the Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements 

 
a. Improvements will be necessary on W. Forevergreen Road for use in incident management during 

the construction of the future I-80/I380 interchange. The DOT will be responsible for the costs of 
design, survey, environmental services, right-of-way acquisition, and construction of the future I-
80/380 interchange and the I-80 Forevergreen Road interchange. Therefore, the DOT and the LPA 
agree to the below division of responsibilities for Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements. 
 

b. The DOT will be the lead agency for the design, survey, environmental services, right of way 
acquisition, construction administration, and inspection for the Forevergreen Road Local Road 
Improvements except as noted below. The DOT will obtain concurrence from the LPA on the 
proposed improvements.   
 

c. The DOT shall be responsible for the cost of design, survey, environmental services, and engineering 
up to project letting. This excludes LPA costs for planning, design, and engineering for the following:  

 
(1) Coordination with the DOT. 
(2) Review of project related documents. 
(3) LPA-owned utilities. 

 
d. The DOT shall provide right of way acquisition services (right of way design, appraisals, negotiations, 

title and closing, and condemnation) for the Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements. The LPA 
shall be responsible for the preparation of land survey plats, and any legal proceedings subsequent to 
a decision made by the Johnson County Compensation Commission (DOT staff shall be available as 
witnesses and provide information), and the acquisition costs for property, and relocation. 
 

e. The DOT will provide a proposed cost estimate to acquire each parcel of land based on an appraisal 
or appraisal waiver to the LPA for concurrence. The LPA’s concurrence will include the ability for the 
DOT to make an administrative settlement on any parcels up to an additional 10%. Any settlement 
above 10% shall first be approved by the LPA designated representative. The LPA’s designated 
representative shall provide buyer’s approval on the purchase agreements.  
 

f.  The LPA is responsible for coordination with public and private utilities to determine utility easement 
needs and acceptability of utility relocation proposals. The LPA will provide the DOT proposed utility 
easement layout and ownership information for DOT coordination in the ROW appraisal and 
negotiation process. 
 

g. The DOT shall provide and be responsible for the construction administration and inspection for the 
Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements projects, except for LPA-owned utilities (LPA owned 
utilities include water main and sanitary sewer) included in the project. The LPA shall be responsible 
for the inspection and acceptance of LPA-owned utilities. 

 
h. As background for the final project cost sharing agreement set out in Section 3, the DOT and the LPA 

originally agreed that the DOT would be responsible for approximately 25% of the eligible roadway 
construction items between the curbs. Further, the parties agreed that the LPA should be responsible 
for 100% of the construction costs for LPA-owned utilities, which are sanitary and storm sewer, water, 
lighting, sidewalks, and aesthetic features and, with exception to a portion of construction included in 
the DOT cost share described in Section 3(a) and 3(b) herein, all other construction costs for work 
outside of the back-of-curb, including clearing and grubbing, topsoil, and driveways and as noted in 
Exhibit B as 100% LPA funded items. 
  



February 2015 
 

 3 

3. Project Costs 
 

a. The DOT is responsible for the costs of Project (333) for Wetland Bank Mitigation and Project (334) 
for Stream Mitigation required for the Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements project. The total 
costs for these projects is estimated at $75,000.  

b. In addition to the DOT’s responsibility for the $75,000 for the mitigation projects, the DOT and LPA 
agree that a Lump Sum amount of $1,000,000 represents a mutually acceptable share of DOT 
construction costs for roadway improvements items described in Section 2(h) above and shown in 
Exhibit B as costs that are the responsibility of the DOT. The LPA shall be responsible for the 
remainder of the Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements costs. The total Forevergreen Road 
Local Road Improvements costs (construction and right-of-way but excluding the mitigation project 
costs set out in 3(a)) are estimated at $5,928,115 with the LPA share estimated at $4,928,115 
(estimated 2017 costs projected to 2018 with 4% per year inflation for construction). 
 

c. The DOT will make construction progress payments to the awarded contractors based on anticipated 
construction bid lettings of July 2017 for Project (337) and July 2018 for Project (321). 

 
d. LPA reimbursement to the DOT for construction cost of roadway improvements will be made in five 

(5) equal yearly installments of approximately $1,001,847 each. The first installment will be due upon 
completion of construction and proper billing by the DOT or July 15, 2021, whichever is later. The 
final four installments will be billed to the LPA one, two, three and four years subsequent to the date 
of the first billing respectively. The actual amount of reimbursement will be determined by the 
quantities in place and the accepted bid at the contract letting. No interest will be charged.  LPA will 
begin making provision to fund its payments required under this section through the property tax 
system as soon as possible. 

 
e. LPA reimbursement to the DOT for construction costs of public utilities for water main and sanitary 

sewer construction will be due upon completion of construction and proper billing by the DOT. 
Estimated construction costs (2017 estimated costs projected to 2018 with 4% per year inflation for 
construction) for water main construction is on Project (337) $159,000 and on Project (321) $163,500 
and for sanitary sewer construction is on Project (321) $163,500 for a total public utilities construction 
cost estimate of $ 462,200. The actual amount of reimbursement will be determined by the quantities 
in place and the accepted bid at the contract letting. 
 

4. Traffic Control 
 

a. For I-380/W. Forevergreen Road Interchange construction, I-380 through-traffic will be maintained. 
Forevergreen Road will remain open during much of the construction of the interchange but will 
require a roadway closure with detour to connect the new roadway and bridge to the existing 
roadway. This connection includes the closure of the Kansas Avenue at W. Forevergreen Road 
intersection for reconstruction of the grade through the intersection. 
 

b. For Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements projects construction, W. Forevergreen Road will 
be closed to through-traffic for both Project (337) and Project (321). Local traffic will be detoured 
during construction of the W. Forevergreen Road Local Road Improvements projects with 
accommodation to maintain local access to properties. 

c. If it becomes necessary to temporarily close W. Forevergreen Road and any LPA streets related to 
the project during construction, the DOT will furnish and install the required barricades and signing for 
the closure at project cost, and shall remove same upon completion of the project also at no expense 
or obligation to the LPA. The DOT will work in close cooperation with the LPA and the contractor to 
accommodate emergency services and local access across the project during construction.  

 
d. Any detours which may be necessary for LPA street closures will be the responsibility of the LPA, all 



February 2015 
 

 4 

at no expense or obligation to the DOT. 
  
5. Right-of-Way 

 
In connection with this project, any real estate and rights to real estate necessary for right of way for 
city streets, alleys, access roads or frontage roads, and any permanent utility easements which are or 
which will be under the jurisdiction of the LPA may be acquired by the DOT for and in the name of the 
LPA. Where acquired by contract the LPA will receive title from the contract seller and the LPA will 
accept title thereto. 
  

6. Bid Letting  
 

a. The project will be let by the DOT in accordance with its normal letting procedures. The LPA shall 
comply with the public hearing requirements of the Iowa Code section 26.12. 

 
b. When let by the DOT, the DOT will identify the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The DOT 

will provide an electronic tabulation of responsive bids to the LPA for concurrence. The LPA shall take 
action to accept the award to the lowest responsive bidder. The LPA shall provide such confirmation 
by email. Following LPA concurrence in the award of contract, the DOT shall execute the contract. 

 
c. The DOT shall be the contracting authority for the project. 

 
7. Construction & Maintenance 

 
a. The LPA, in cooperation with the DOT, will take whatever steps may be required with respect to 

alteration of the grade lines of the new highway facilities constructed under the project in accordance 
with Iowa Code section 364.15. The DOT and LPA will work together to minimize potential impacts to 
properties that may occur as a result of the project.  

 
b. Lighting installations will not be constructed as part of the project unless specifically requested by the 

LPA. Lighting which is requested by the LPA will also be paid for entirely by the LPA at no cost to the 
DOT. If constructed, the LPA shall accept ownership of and responsibility for future energy and 
maintenance costs of lighting units which lie within the corporate boundaries.  

 
c. Traffic signals are not warranted within the W. Forevergreen Local Road Improvements project and 

are not part of this project.  
 
8. General Provisions 
 
a. The LPA will comply with all provisions of the equal employment opportunity requirements prohibiting 

discrimination and requiring affirmative action to assure equal employment opportunity as required by 
Iowa Code Chapter 216. No person will, on the grounds of age, race, creed, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, religion, pregnancy, or disability, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity for which State funds are used.  
 

b. It is the intent of both parties that no third party beneficiaries be created by this Agreement. 
 

c. If any section, provision, or part of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
such finding shall not affect the validity of the Agreement as a whole or any section, provision, or part 
thereof not found to be invalid or unconstitutional, except to the extent that the original intent of the 
Agreement cannot be fulfilled. 

 
d. This Agreement may be executed in two counterparts, each of which so executed will be deemed to 

be an original. 



February 2015 
 

 5 

 
e. This Agreement, as well as the unaffected provisions of any previous agreements, addendums, 

and/or amendments; represents the entire Agreement between the LPA and DOT regarding this 
project. All previously executed agreements will remain in effect except as amended herein. Any 
subsequent change or modification to the terms of this Agreement will be in the form of a duly 
executed amendment to this document. 

 
  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Agreement No. 2015-16-255 as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
   
By:       ATTEST:       
     Terry L. Donahue, Mayor Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk             
 
 
STATE OF IOWA, JOHNSON COUNTY:  ss   
 
 On this _____ day of May, 2017, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of 
Iowa, personally appeared Terry L. Donahue and Tracey Mulcahey, to me personally known, who, being by 
me duly sworn, did say that they are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, 
a municipal corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of the municipal 
corporation; and that the instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of the municipal corporation by the 
authority of its City Council, as contained in Resolution No. ___________ of the City Council on the _____ 
day of May, 2017; and that Terry L. Donahue and Tracey Mulcahey acknowledged the execution of the 
instrument to be their voluntary act and deed and the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it and by 
them voluntarily executed. 
 
              
        Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
By:                                                               Date                                                         , 2017. 
      James R. Schnoebelen 
      District Engineer 
      District 6 
 
 
  



February 2015 
 

 6 

 
  



February 2015 
 

 7 

 
  



February 2015 
 

 8 

 



North Liberty – 2017  Resolution Number 2017-52 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2017-52 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIMARY ROAD PROJECT BETWEEN THE 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND THE CITY 
OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA REGARDING WEST 
FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (AGREEMENT NO. 2015-
16-255) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to enter into an agreement with the Iowa 

Department of Transportation regarding the West Forevergreen Road Project,  
 
WHEREAS, the agreement establishes the terms and conditions for the project and 

financing of the project, and  
 
WHEREAS, the terms and conditions have been set forth in the attached agreement, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached agreement between 

the City of North Liberty and Iowa Department of Transportation is approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2017. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR   TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 

City of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

Monthly Report Summarization 
 

April 30, 2017 
 
This report provides a summarization of the budget status after the end of April 2017.  At the end of 
this month, the City is 83.33% through the budget year.  The red line indicates the percentage 
where the budget area is and green/blue line is the percentage of the budget year.  Any particular 
area falling approximately 10% below or above the percentage of the budget year will be explained 
below.  The data includes the amended budget. 
 
Revenues:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted revenues as of 
April 30, 2017:    
 

 
 
 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

General Fund Road Use Tax Water Utility Wastewater Utility Storm Water Utility



 
• This chart represents the historical view at the end of April.  The City received the first 

half of the property tax revenue in October and the second half in April.   
• Stormwater revenues are significantly higher than the amended amount due to the SRF 

Sponsored Water Quality Soil Quality Restoration Project reimbursement coming in 
early May.  

 
Overall revenues for the year to date are $44,141,208.24, 57.51% of the budgeted amount. This 
amount is less than the budgeted mark. The final borrowing of 2017 and end of year transfers will 
bring this number in line with projected amounts. 
 
Expenditures:  The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted expenditures 
as of April 30, 2017:    
 

 
 
 
 

• Public Safety is below projected due to end of year transfers.  
• Health and Social Service expenses are higher due to the payment to the Food Pantry and 

the School Family Resource Centers and other social service payments in July and August. 
• Culture and Recreation is below projected expenditures for the year. End of year transfers 

will bring this number onto the budget target. 
• Community and Economic Development are below projected budget due to some 

contributions budgeted not being necessary in FY 17. 
• Road Use Tax expenditures are lower than expected due to end of year transfers.  

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%



• Stormwater Utility expenses are lower than projected for a budgetary cushion for the Soil 
Quality Restoration Program.  

 
Year to date total expenditures are $33,595,516.36 or 42.38% of the projected budget amounts. 
This amount is less than the 83.33% of the fiscal year completed due to expenditures and transfers 
occurring later in the fiscal year.    
 
Following is the Treasurer’s Report for April.  The General Fund Balance is comprised of more than 
just the 010 General Fund. For accounting purposes of the budget and reporting, other funds such 
as Library Capital, Fire Capital and others are incorporated into the General total.  The General 
Fund for operating expenses has a fund balance of $ 4,765,427.87. The other funds in the total 
shown here are obligated to specific departments or types of activities.  The other funds are 
separated out to keep those obligations clear for future expenditures.    
 
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

April 30, 2017 

FUNDS BALANCE 
FORWARD REVENUE  EXPENSE BALANCE 

ENDING 

 
04/01/2017 

  
04/30/2017 

          

GENERAL 5,400,585.31 3,170,190.64 -974,526.26 7,596,249.69 

          

SPECIAL REVENUE 6,460,486.00 2,466,087.62 -150,645.37 8,775,928.25 

          

DEBT SERVICE  410,183.02 2,963,697.56 -40,280.00 3,333,600.58 

          

CAPITAL PROJECTS -5,206,467.27 1,111,356.51 -92,457.84 -4,187,568.60 

          

WATER ENTERPRISE 4,322,720.07 1,526,146.10 -990,022.87 4,858,843.30 

          

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 1,916,587.72 2,015,175.12 -699,440.65 3,232,322.19 

          

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 221,396.68 15,858.58 -28,401.16 208,854.10 

          

TOTAL 13,525,491.53 13,268,512.13 
-

2,975,774.15 23,818,229.51 
 
 
If you have questions regarding this document or would like additional information, please contact 
Tracey Mulcahey.  
 
 


	City Administrator Memo
	Agenda 
	Consent Agenda 
	Creekside South 
	Fire Chief Position 
	Police Station Project 
	FY 17 Budget 
	Backflow Prevention Ord 
	Electrician/Plumber Ord
	Water Rate Ord 
	Sewer Rate Ord 
	IDOT Agreement 
	Additional Information 



